

Indigo Books & Music Inc. - Trade Drop Ship

X12/V4010/850: 850 Purchase Order

Version: 2 Final

Author: InterTrade

Company: Indigo Books & Music Inc.

Publication: 2020-11-25 Modified: 2021-04-30

Purchase Order - 850

Table of Contents

850	Pu	rchase Order	1
	ISA	Interchange Control Header	3
	GS	Functional Group Header	5
	ST	Transaction Set Header	7
	BEG	Beginning Segment for Purchase Order	8
	CUR	Currency	9
	REF	Reference Identification	10
	CSH	Sales Requirements	11
	ITD	Terms of Sale/Deferred Terms of Sale	12
	DTM	Date/Time Reference	13
	TD5	Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time)	14
	N1	Loop Name	16
	N1	Name	17
	N2	Additional Name Information	18
	N3	Address Information	19
	N4	Geographic Location	20
	PER	Administrative Communications Contact	21
	PO1	Loop Baseline Item Data	23
	PO1	Baseline Item Data	24
	СТР	Loop Pricing Information	26
	СТР	Pricing Information	27
	PID	Loop Product/Item Description	28
	PID	Product/Item Description	29
	N9	Loop Reference Identification	30
	N9	Reference Identification	31
	MSG	Message Text	32
	СТТ	Loop Transaction Totals	33
	CTT	Transaction Totals	34
	SF	Transaction Set Trailer	35

850

Purchase Order

Functional Group=PO

Purpose: This Draft Standard for Trial Use contains the format and establishes the data contents of the Purchase Order Transaction Set (850) for use within the context of an Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) environment. The transaction set can be used to provide for customary and established business and industry practice relative to the placement of purchase orders for goods and services. This transaction set should not be used to convey purchase order changes or purchase order acknowledgment information.

Not Defined:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Max Use</u>	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
	ISA	Interchange Control Header	M	1			Must use
	GS	Functional Group Header	М	1			Must use
Heading	j :						
		O			D	A 1 . 4	

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
010	ST	Transaction Set Header	M	1			Must use
020	BEG	Beginning Segment for Purchase Order	М	1			Must use
040	CUR	Currency	M	1			Must use
050	REF	Reference Identification	M	>1			Must use
110	CSH	Sales Requirements	M	5			Must use
130	ITD	Terms of Sale/Deferred Terms of Sale	0	>1			Used
150	DTM	Date/Time Reference	M	10			Must use
240	TD5	Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time)	0	12			Used

LOOP	<u>ID - N1</u>		<u>200</u>	<u>200</u>		
310	N1	Name	M	1		Must use
320	N2	Additional Name Information	0	2		Used
330	N3	Address Information	0	2		Used
340	N4	Geographic Location	0	>1		Used
360	PER	Administrative Communications Contact	С	>1		Used

Detail:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
LOOP ID	- PO1				<u>100000</u>	N2/010L	
010	PO1	Baseline Item Data	M	1		N2/010	Must use
LOOP ID	- CTP				<u>>1</u>		
040	CTP	Pricing Information	М	1			Must use
LOOP ID	- PID				<u>1000</u>		
050	PID	Product/Item Description	М	1			Must use
LOOP ID	- N9				<u>1000</u>		
295	N9	Reference Identification	М	1			Must use
300	MSG	Message Text	M	1000			Must use

Summary:

	<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
	LOOP	ID - CTT				1	N3/010L	
	010	CTT	Transaction Totals	М	1		N3/010	Must use
_	030	SE	Transaction Set Trailer	М	1			Must use

Notes:

2/010L PO102 is required.
 2/010 PO102 is required.
 3/010L The number of line items (CTT01) is the accumulation of the number of PO1 segments. If used, hash total (CTT02) is the sum of the value of quantities ordered (PO102) for each PO1 segment.
 3/010 The number of line items (CTT01) is the accumulation of the number of PO1 segments. If used, hash total (CTT02) is the sum of the value of quantities ordered (PO102) for each PO1 segment.

User Note 1:

Change History:

April 2021:

Added PER segment in N1 loop for DropShip (LTL shipments)

Added TD5_04 to support LTL

Added CG qualifier in the TD5_12

ISA Interchange Control Header

Pos: Max: 1
Not Defined - Mandatory
Loop: N/A Elements: 16

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To start and identify an interchange of zero or more functional groups and interchange-related control

segments

Element Summary:

Ref ISA01	<u>ld</u> 101	Element Name Authorization Information Qualifier	Req M	Type ID	Min/Max 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Must use	Rep 1			
		Description: Code to identify the type	pe of inf	ormation	in the Authoriz	ation Information	1			
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: Code Name No Authorization Information			aningful Inform	ation in I02)				
ISA02	102	Authorization Information	М	AN	10/10	Must use	1			
		Description: Information used for a interchange sender or the data in the Authorization Information Qualifier (I	e interch				ne			
ISA03	103	Security Information Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use	1			
		Description: Code to identify the tyles All valid standard codes are used.	="		=	Information				
ISA04	104	Security Information	М	AN	10/10	Must use	1			
		Description: This is used for identify sender or the data in the interchange Information Qualifier (I03)		-			ge			
ISA05	105	Interchange ID Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use	1			
		Description: Qualifier to designate the system/method of code structure used to designate the sender or receiver ID element being qualified User Note 1: ZZ								
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: Code Name ZZ Mutually Defined	38, Incli	uded: 1)						
ISA06	106	Interchange Sender ID	М	AN	15/15	Must use	1			
		Description: Identification code published by the sender for other parties to use as receiver ID to route data to them; the sender always codes this value in the sender element User Note 1:								
		NDIGOTRADEDS								
ISA07	105	Interchange ID Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use	1			
		Description: Qualifier to designate the sender or receiver ID element be	-		od of code stru	cture used to des	signate			

<u>Ref</u> ISA08	<u>ld</u> 107	Element Name Interchange Receiver ID	Req M	<u>Type</u> AN	Min/Max 15/15	<u>Usage</u> Must use	<u>Rep</u> 1
		Description: Identification code publused by the sender as their sending I receiving ID to route data to them					
ISA09	108	Interchange Date	М	DT	6/6	Must use	1
		Description: Date of the interchange)				
ISA10	109	Interchange Time	М	TM	4/4	Must use	1
		Description: Time of the interchange	e				
ISA11	I10	Interchange Control Standards Identifier	М	ID	1/1	Must use	1
		Description: Code to identify the age message that is enclosed by the inter All valid standard codes are used.	change	header	and trailer	standard used b	y the
ISA12	l11	Interchange Control Version Number	М	ID	5/5	Must use	1
		Description: Code specifying the ver	rsion nu	ımber of	the interchange	control segmer	nts
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 1 Code Name O0401 Draft Standards for Trial Use Review Board through October	Approv	ed for Pu		C X12 Procedur	es
ISA13	l12	Interchange Control Number	М	N0	9/9	Must use	1
		Description: A control number assig	ned by	the interd	change sender		
ISA14	I13	Acknowledgment Requested	М	ID	1/1	Must use	1
		Description: Code sent by the sende	er to rec	quest an i	interchange acl	knowledgment (ГА1)
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 2 Code Name No Acknowledgment Request		led: 1)			
ISA15	l14	Usage Indicator	М	ID	1/1	Must use	1
		Description: Code to indicate whether production or information	er data	enclosed	by this interch	ange envelope i	s test,
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 3 Code Name Production Data T Test Data	3, Includ	led: 2)			
ISA16	l15	Component Element Separator	М		1/1	Must use	1
		Description: Type is not applicable; not a data element; this field provides elements within a composite data stru	the de	limiter us	ed to separate	component data	ı

elements within a composite data structure; this value must be different than the data element separator and the segment terminator

GS Functional Group Header

Pos: Max: 1
Not Defined - Mandatory
Loop: N/A Elements: 8

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the beginning of a functional group and to provide control information

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> GS01	<u>ld</u> 479	<u>Element Name</u> Functional Identifier Code	Req M	Type ID	Min/Max 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Must use	<u>Rep</u> 1				
		Description: Code identifying a grou	ıp of apı	olication	related transac	ction sets					
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 2 Code Name PO Purchase Order (850)	224, Inc	luded: 1)							
GS02	142	Application Sender's Code	М	AN	2/15	Must use	1				
		Description: Code identifying party sending transmission; codes agreed to by trading partners									
		User Note 1: NDIGOTRADEDS									
0000	404			A N I	0/45	N 4 .					
GS03	124	Application Receiver's Code	M	AN	2/15	Must use	1				
		Description: Code identifying party partners	receivin	g transm	ission; codes a	greed to by tradi	ng				
GS04	373	Date	M	DT	8/8	Must use	1				
		Description: Date expressed as CC	YYMME	DD							
GS05	337	Time	M	TM	4/8	Must use	1				
		Description: Time expressed in 24-HHMMSSD, or HHMMSSDD, where seconds (00-59) and DD = decimal s = tenths (0-9) and DD = hundredths (H = hou econds;	ırs (00-23	B), M = minutes	s (00-59), S = interest	eger				
GS06	28	Group Control Number	М	N0	1/9	Must use	1				
		Description: Assigned number origin	nated ai	nd mainta	ained by the se	ender					
GS07	455	Responsible Agency Code	М	ID	1/2	Must use	1				
		Description: Code used in conjuncti standard	on with	Data Ele	ment 480 to id	entify the issuer o	of the				
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 2	2, Includ	led: 1)							
		Code NameX Accredited Standards Commit	ttee X12	2							
GS08	480	Version / Release / Industry Identifier Code	М	AN	1/12	Must use	1				
		Description: Code indication the ver			ادماد وممادها	:	4 4 1				

Description: Code indicating the version, release, subrelease, and industry identifier of the EDI standard being used, including the GS and GE segments; if code in DE455 in GS segment is X, then in DE 480 positions 1-3 are the version number; positions 4-6 are the release and subrelease, level of the version; and positions 7-12 are the industry or trade association identifiers (optionally assigned by user); if code in DE455 in GS segment is T,

Ref Id Element Name Req Type Min/Max Usage Rep then other formats are allowed

Semantics:

- 1. GS04 is the group date.
- 2. GS05 is the group time.
- 3. The data interchange control number GS06 in this header must be identical to the same data element in the associated functional group trailer, GE02.

Comments:

1. A functional group of related transaction sets, within the scope of X12 standards, consists of a collection of similar transaction sets enclosed by a functional group header and a functional group trailer.

ST Transaction Set Header

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the start of a transaction set and to assign a control number

Element Summary:

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name Transaction Set Identifier Code	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	Rep
ST01	143	Description: Code uniquely identifyi	M ng a Tr	ID ansaction	3/3 Set	Must use	1
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 2	Ü				
		Code Name	200, 1110				
		850 Purchase Order					
ST02	329	Transaction Set Control Number	M	AN	4/9	Must use	1
		Description: Identifying control num	ber that	t must be	unique within	the transaction se	et

Description: Identifying control number that must be unique within the transaction set

functional group assigned by the originator for a transaction set

Semantics:

1. The transaction set identifier (ST01) used by the translation routines of the interchange partners to select the appropriate transaction set definition (e.g., 810 selects the Invoice Transaction Set).

BEG Beginning Segment for Purchase Order

Pos: 020 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the beginning of the Purchase Order Transaction Set and transmit identifying numbers and dates

Element Summary:

Ref BEG01	<u>ld</u> 353	Element Name Transaction Set Purpose Code	<u>Req</u> M	Type ID	Min/Max 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Must use	<u>Rep</u> 1
2200.		Description: Code identifying purpo					·
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 6 Code Name O Original	65, Inclu	ıded: 1)			
BEG02	92	Purchase Order Type Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use	1
		Description: Code specifying the typuser Note 1: "DS" indicates Drop Ship PO, where "DR" indicates Direct Ship PO, where Code List Summary (Total Codes: 6 Code Name DR Direct Ship DS Dropship	the ven	dor ships ndor Ship	directly to cor		
BEG03	324	Purchase Order Number	М	AN	1/22	Must use	1
		Description: Identifying number for User Note 1: Purchase Order Number is 10 characters.				e orderer/purcha	ser
BEG05	373	Date	М	DT	8/8	Must use	1
		Description: Date expressed as CC	YYMME	DD			

Semantics:

1. BEG05 is the date assigned by the purchaser to purchase order.

CUR Currency

Pos: 040 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify the currency (dollars, pounds, francs, etc.) used in a transaction

Element Summary:

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	<u>Rep</u>
CUR01	98	Entity Identifier Code	М	ID	2/3	Must use	1
		Description: Code identifying an orgindividual	ganizatio	onal entit	y, a physical lo	cation, property o	or an
		Code List Summary (Total Codes:	1312, In	cluded: 1)		
		Code Name					
		SE Selling Party					
CUR02	100	Currency Code	М	ID	3/3	Must use	1
		Description: Code (Standard ISO) f	or coun	try in who	se currency th	e charges are sp	ecified
		User Note 1:					
		CAD = Canada					
		USD = US					
		GBP = Great Britain Pound					
		EUR = European					

REF Reference Identification

Pos: 050 Max: >1 **Heading - Mandatory** Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify identifying information

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	Rep
REF01	128	Reference Identification Qualifier	М	ID	2/3	Used	1
		Description: Code qualifying the Re	ference	Identifica	ation		
		Code List Summary (Total Codes:	1503, In	cluded: 2	2)		
		Code Name					
		CO Customer Order Number					
		IA Internal Vendor Number					
REF02	127	Reference Identification	М	AN	1/30	Used	1
		Description: Reference information	as defir	ned for a	particular Trans	saction Set or as	6

specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

Syntax Rules:

1. R0203 - At least one of REF02 or REF03 is required.

CSH Sales Requirements

Pos: 110 Max: 5 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify general conditions or requirements of the sale

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	<u>Rep</u>
CSH01	563	Sales Requirement Code	M	ID	1/2	Must use	1

Description: Code to identify a specific requirement or agreement of sale

Code List Summary (Total Codes: 54, Included: 1)

Code Name

N No Back Order

ITD Terms of Sale/Deferred Terms of Sale

Pos: 130 Max: >1 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 3

User Option (Usage): Used **Purpose:** To specify terms of sale

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> ITD01	<u>ld</u> 336	<u>Element Name</u> Terms Type Code	Req O	Type ID	Min/Max 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Used	<u>Rep</u> 1
		Description: Code identifying type of	of paymo	ent terms			
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: Code Name Basic	65, Inclu	uded: 1)			
ITD02	333	Terms Basis Date Code	0	ID	1/2	Used	1
		Description: Code identifying the be	eginning	of the te	rms period		
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: Code Name Invoice Date	17, Inclu	uded: 1)			
ITD12	352	Description	0	AN	1/80	Used	1
		Description: A free-form description	to clari	fy the rela	ated data elem	ents and their co	ontent

User Note 1:

ITD*01*03******60

DTM Date/Time Reference

Pos: 150 Max: 10 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify pertinent dates and times

Element Summary:

Ref <u>ld</u> **Element Name** Min/Max **Usage** Req **Type** <u>Rep</u> DTM01 374 **Date/Time Qualifier** Μ ID 3/3 Must use 1

Description: Code specifying type of date or time, or both date and time

Code List Summary (Total Codes: 1112, Included: 2)

Code Name

002 Delivery Requested118 Requested Pick-up

DTM02 373 **Date** M DT 8/8 Must use 1

Description: Date expressed as CCYYMMDD

User Note 1:

002 is used to indicate the date on which the Purchase Order is to

be delivered by

118 is used to indicate the date on which the Purchase Order is to

be shipped or picked up. This date, described by Indigo as the Carrier Handover

Date (CHO) is provided for all Purchase Orders

TD5 Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time)

Pos: 240 Max: 12 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 5

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the carrier and sequence of routing and provide transit time information

Element Summary:

Ref TD502	<u>ld</u> 66	Element Name Identification Code Qualifier	Req O	Type ID	Min/Max 1/2	<u>Usage</u> Used	<u>Rep</u> 1
		Description: Code designating the Code (67)	system/	method o	of code structure	e used for Identi	ification
		Code List Summary (Total Codes	: 215, Ind	cluded: 1)			
		Code Name					
		2 Standard Carrier Alpha Cod	e (SCAC	5)			
TD503	67	Identification Code	0	AN	2/80	Used	1
		Description: Code identifying a pa	rty or oth	er code			
TD504	91	Transportation Method/Type Code	0	ID	1/2	Used	1
		Description: Code specifying the r	method c	r type of	transportation f	or the shipment	
		Code List Summary (Total Codes	: 71, Incl	uded: 1)			
		Code Name					
		LT Less Than Trailer Load (LTL	_)				
TD505	387	Routing	0	AN	1/35	Used	1
		Description: Free-form description originating carrier's identity	of the ro	outing or	requested routi	ng for shipment	, or the
TD512	284	Service Level Code	0	ID	2/2	Used	1
		Description: Code indicating the least the transportation carrier	evel of tra	ansportati	on service or th	ne billing service	e offered
		Code List Summary (Total Codes	: 66, Incl	uded: 4)			
		Code Name					
		CG Ground					
		User Note 1:					
		CG Ground used for LTL St	hipments				
		ES Expedited Service					
		User Note 1:	for Dron	nium Chim	nina		
		ES Expedited Service usedG2 Standard Service	ior Prem	ılurn Snip	ping		
		G2 Standard Service User Note 1:					
		G2 Standard Service used to	for Stano	ard Shinr	oina		
		SE Second Day	. Claria		···· ·		
		User Note 1:					
		SE Second Day used for Ne	ext Day				
			-				

Syntax Rules:

- 1. R0204050612 At least one of TD502, TD504, TD505, TD506 or TD512 is required.
- 2. C0203 If TD502 is present, then TD503 is required.

Loop Name

Pos: 310 Repeat: 200 Mandatory

Loop: N1 Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To identify a party by type of organization, name, and code

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
310	N1	Name	M	1		Must use
320	N2	Additional Name Information	0	2		Used
330	N3	Address Information	0	2		Used
340	N4	Geographic Location	0	>1		Used
360	PER	Administrative Communications Contact	С	>1		Used

N1 Name

Pos: 310 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N1 Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To identify a party by type of organization, name, and code

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> N101	<u>ld</u> 98	<u>Element Name</u> Entity Identifier Code	Req M	Type ID	Min/Max 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use	<u>Rep</u> 1
		Description: Code identifying an or individual	rganizatio	onal entit	y, a physical lo	ocation, property	or an
		Code List Summary (Total Codes:	1312, In	cluded: 3	3)		
		Code Name					
		BT Bill-to-Party					
		ST Ship To					
		VN Vendor					
N102	93	Name	М	AN	1/60	Must use	1
		Description: Free-form name					
N103	66	Identification Code Qualifier	0	ID	1/2	Used	1
		Description: Code designating the Code (67)	system/r	method o	f code structur	e used for Identi	fication
		User Note 1:					
		If N1_03 is present it is a Ship to Sto	ore Orde	r.			
		Code List Summary (Total Codes:	215, Inc	luded: 2)			
		Code Name					
		1 D-U-N-S Number, Dun & Bra	adstreet				
		15 Standard Address Number (SAN)				
N104	67	Identification Code	0	AN	2/80	Used	1
		Description: Code identifying a par	rty or oth	er code			
		User Note 1:					
		If N1_04 is present it is a Ship to Sto	ore Orde	r.			

Syntax Rules:

- 1. R0203 At least one of N102 or N103 is required.
- 2. P0304 If either N103 or N104 is present, then the other is required.

Comments:

 This segment, used alone, provides the most efficient method of providing organizational identification. To obtain this efficiency the "ID Code" (N104) must provide a key to the table maintained by the transaction processing party.

User Note 1:

If N1_03 and 04 are present it is a Ship to Store Order. N1_03 and 04 are not used on Drop Ship POs.

N2 Additional Name Information

Pos: 320 Max: 2 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify additional names or those longer than 35 characters in length

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	<u>Rep</u>
N201	93	Name	0	AN	1/60	Used	1

Description: Free-form name

N3 Address Information

Pos: 330 Max: 2 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the location of the named party

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	<u>Rep</u>
N301	166	Address Information	М	AN	1/55	Must use	1

Description: Address information

N4 Geographic Location

Pos: 340 Max: >1 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the geographic place of the named party

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	<u>Rep</u>
N401	19	City Name	0	AN	2/30	Used	1
		Description: Free-form text for city	name				
N402	156	State or Province Code	0	ID	2/2	Used	1
		Description: Code (Standard State agency	/Provinc	e) as def	ined by approp	riate governmen	t
N403	116	Postal Code	0	ID	3/15	Used	1
		Description: Code defining internat blanks (zip code for United States)	ional po	stal zone	code excludin	g punctuation ar	nd
N404	26	Country Code	0	ID	2/3	Used	1
		Description: Code identifying the co	ountry				

Comments:

- 1. A combination of either N401 through N404, or N405 and N406 may be adequate to specify a location.
- 2. N402 is required only if city name (N401) is in the U.S. or Canada.

PER Administrative Communications Contact

Pos: 360 Max: >1 Heading - Conditional Loop: N1 Elements: 6

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To identify a person or office to whom administrative communications should be directed

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> PER01	<u>ld</u> 366	Element Name Contact Function Code	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Must use	<u>Rep</u> 1
		Description: Code identifying the ma	ajor dut	y or respo	onsibility of the	person or group	named
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 2 Code Name DC Delivery Contact	:30, Inc	luded: 1)			
PER02	93	Name	М	AN	1/60	Must use	1
		Description: Free-form name					
PER03	365	Communication Number Qualifier	M	ID	2/2	Must use	1
		Description: Code identifying the type	e of co	mmunica	tion number		
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 4 Code Name TE Telephone	:0, Inclu	uded: 1)			
PER04	364	Communication Number	M	AN	1/80	Must use	1
		Description: Complete communicati applicable	ons nui	mber inclu	uding country of	or area code whe	n
		User Note 1: (i.e. 555-555-5555)					
PER05	365	Communication Number Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use	1
		Description: Code identifying the type	e of co	mmunica	tion number		
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 4 Code Name EM Electronic Mail	0, Inclu	uded: 1)			
PER06	364	Communication Number	М	AN	1/80	Must use	1
		Description: Complete communication applicable User Note 1: The email address can					n

Syntax Rules:

- 1. P0304 If either PER03 or PER04 is present, then the other is required.
- 2. P0506 If either PER05 or PER06 is present, then the other is required.

User Note 1:

PER segment will be present when the BEG02=DS (Vendor Ships directly to the consumer) and for all LTL

shipments

Loop Baseline Item Data

Pos: 010 Repeat: 100000 Mandatory

Loop: PO1 Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify basic and most frequently used line item data

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
010	PO1	Baseline Item Data	M	1		Must use
040		Loop CTP	M		>1	Must use
050		Loop PID	M		1000	Must use

PO1 Baseline Item Data

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Detail - Mandatory Loop: PO1 Elements: 9

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify basic and most frequently used line item data

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> PO101	<u>ld</u> 350	Element Name Assigned Identification	Req M	<u>Type</u> AN	Min/Max 1/20	<u>Usage</u> Must use	<u>Rep</u> 1
		Description: Alphanumeric characte	ers assi	gned for	differentiation v	within a transaction	on set
		User Note 1: PO101 must be non-sequential and	returne	d on all d	ocuments		
PO102	330	Quantity Ordered	М	R	1/15	Must use	1
		Description: Quantity ordered					
PO103	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	M	ID	2/2	Must use	1
		Description: Code specifying the ur which a measurement has been take		hich a va	lue is being ex	pressed, or man	ner in
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: Code Name EA Each	794, Inc	cluded: 1)			
PO104	212	Unit Price	М	R	1/17	Must use	1
		Description: Price per unit of produc	ct, servi	ce, comn	nodity, etc.		
PO105	639	Basis of Unit Price Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use	1
		Description: Code identifying the ty	pe of ur	nit price fo	or an item		
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 9 Code Name NT Net	91, Incl	uded: 1)			
PO106	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use	1
		Description: Code identifying the ty Product/Service ID (234)	pe/sour	ce of the	descriptive nu	mber used in	
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: A Code Name EN European Article Number (EA IB International Standard Book NUK U.P.C./EAN Shipping Contain UP U.P.C. Consumer Package C	AN) (2-5 Number ner Cod	-5-1) (ISBN) e (1-2-5-			
PO107	234	Product/Service ID	М	AN	1/48	Must use	1
		Description: Identifying number for	a produ	ct or serv	/ice		
PO108	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use	1
		Description: Code identifying the ty	pe/sour	ce of the	descriptive nu	mber used in	

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name Product/Service ID (234)	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	<u>Rep</u>	
		Code List Summary (Total Codes	s: 477, Inc	luded: 6)				
Code Name								
		EN European Article Number (EAN) (2-5-	-5-1)				
		IB International Standard Boo	k Number	(ISBN)				
		MG Manufacturer's Part Number	er					
		UK U.P.C./EAN Shipping Conta	K U.P.C./EAN Shipping Container Code (1-2-5-5-1)					
		UP U.P.C. Consumer Package	Code (1-5	5-5-1)				
		VN Vendor's (Seller's) Item Nu	mber					
PO109	234	Product/Service ID	М	AN	1/48	Must use	1	

Description: Identifying number for a product or service

Syntax Rules:

- 1. C0302 If PO103 is present, then PO102 is required.
- 2. C0504 If PO105 is present, then PO104 is required.
- 3. P0607 If either PO106 or PO107 is present, then the other is required.
- 4. P0809 If either PO108 or PO109 is present, then the other is required.

Comments:

- 1. See the Data Element Dictionary for a complete list of IDs.
- 2. PO101 is the line item identification.
- 3. PO106 through PO125 provide for ten different product/service IDs per each item. For example: Case, Color, Drawing No., U.P.C. No., ISBN No., Model No., or SKU.

Loop Pricing Information

Pos: 040 Repeat: >1 Mandatory

Loop: CTP Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Must use **Purpose:** To specify pricing information

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
040	CTP	Pricing Information	M	1		Must use

CTP Pricing Information

Pos: 040 Max: 1 Detail - Mandatory Loop: CTP Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To specify pricing information

Element Summary:

Ref CTP02	<u>ld</u> 236	Element Name Price Identifier Code	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 3/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use	<u>Rep</u> 1		
		Description: Code identifying pricin	ıg specif	ication					
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: Code Name SLP Suggested List Price	164, Inc	cluded: 1)					
CTP03	212	Unit Price	М	R	1/17	Must use	1		
		Description: Price per unit of produ	ıct, servi	ce, comm	nodity, etc.				
CTP06	648	Price Multiplier Qualifier	0	ID	3/3	Used	1		
		Description: Code indicating the type of price multiplier							
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: Code Name DIS Discount Multiplier	6, Inclu	ded: 1)					
CTP07	649	Multiplier	0	R	1/10	Used	1		
		Description: Value to be used as a multiplier to obtain a new value							
		User Note 1:							
		Multiplier of $.8 = 20\%$ discount							
		Multiplier of .6 = 40% discount							

Syntax Rules:

1. C0607 - If CTP06 is present, then CTP07 is required.

Semantics:

1. CTP07 is a multiplier factor to arrive at a final discounted price. A multiplier of .90 would be the factor if a 10% discount is given.

Loop Product/Item Description

Pos: 050 Repeat: 1000 Mandatory

Loop: PID Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To describe a product or process in coded or free-form format

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
050	PID	Product/Item Description	M	1		Must use
295		Loop N9	М		1000	Must use

PID Product/Item Description

Pos: 050 Max: 1 Detail - Mandatory Loop: PID Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To describe a product or process in coded or free-form format

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	<u>Rep</u>	
PID01	349	Item Description Type	М	ID	1/1	Must use	1	
		Description: Code indicating the format of a description						
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 3, Included: 1)						
		Code Name						
		F Free-form						
PID05	352	Description	М	AN	1/80	Must use	1	

Description: A free-form description to clarify the related data elements and their content

Syntax Rules:

1. R0405 - At least one of PID04 or PID05 is required.

Comments:

1. If PID01 equals "F", then PID05 is used. If PID01 equals "S", then PID04 is used. If PID01 equals "X", then both PID04 and PID05 are used.

Loop Reference Identification

Pos: 295 Repeat: 1000 Mandatory

Loop: N9 Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To transmit identifying information as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
295	N9	Reference Identification	M	1		Must use
300	MSG	Message Text	M	1000		Must use

N9 Reference Identification

Pos: 295 Max: 1 Detail - Mandatory Loop: N9 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To transmit identifying information as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> N901	<u>ld</u> 128	Element Name Reference Identification Qualifier	Req M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use	<u>Rep</u> 1		
11001	.20	Description: Code qualifying the Re				maer acc	·		
		Code List Summary (Total Codes: 7 Code Name L1 Letters or Notes	1503, In	cluded: 1)				
N902	127	Reference Identification	М	AN	1/30	Must use	1		
Description: Reference information as defined for a particular Transaction Set or as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier User Note 1:									
		When N901 = L1 the N902 will contain one of the following 3 character codes to identify the							
		type of note to follow in MSG01.							
		GFT: Gift Message							
		CCG: Customized Message							

Syntax Rules:

1. R0203 - At least one of N902 or N903 is required.

MSG Message Text

Pos: 300 Max: 1000 Detail - Mandatory Loop: N9 Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To provide a free-form format that allows the transmission of text information

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	<u>Rep</u>
MSG01	933	Free-Form Message Text	M	AN	1/264	Must use	1

Description: Free-form message text

User Note 1:

If N901 = L1 & N902 = GFT then MSG01 will contain a Gift Message

If N901 = L1 & N902 = CCG then MSG01 will contain a Customized Message

Loop Transaction Totals

Pos: 010 Repeat: 1

Mandatory

Loop: CTT Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To transmit a hash total for a specific element in the transaction set

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
010	CTT	Transaction Totals	M	1		Must use

CTT Transaction Totals

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Summary - Mandatory Loop: CTT Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To transmit a hash total for a specific element in the transaction set

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	<u>Rep</u>
CTT01	354	Number of Line Items	М	N0	1/6	Must use	1

Description: Total number of line items in the transaction set

Comments:

1. This segment is intended to provide hash totals to validate transaction completeness and correctness.

SE Transaction Set Trailer

Pos: 030 Max: 1 Summary - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the end of the transaction set and provide the count of the transmitted segments (including the beginning (ST) and ending (SE) segments)

Element Summary:

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	<u>Rep</u>		
SE01	96	Number of Included Segments	M	N0	1/10	Must use	1		
		Description: Total number of segments	ents inc	luded in a	a transaction se	et including ST ar	nd SE		
SE02	329	Transaction Set Control Number	М	AN	4/9	Must use	1		
		Description: Identifying control number that must be unique within the transaction set functional group assigned by the originator for a transaction set							

Comments:

1. SE is the last segment of each transaction set.